                                                                       230

       1                              BEFORE THE

                         FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

       2

       3       In the Matter of:

                                                    DOCKET NO. 110007-EI

       4

               ENVIRONMENTAL COST RECOVERY

       5       CLAUSE.

               ____________________________/

       6

       7

       8

       9

      10

      11                               VOLUME 2

      12                        Pages 230 through 340

      13

      14

      15       PROCEEDINGS:             HEARING

      16       COMMISSIONERS

               PARTICIPATING:           CHAIRMAN ART GRAHAM

      17                                COMMISSIONER LISA POLAK EDGAR

                                        COMMISSIONER RONALD A. BRISÉ

      18                                COMMISSIONER EDUARDO E. BALBIS

                                        COMMISSIONER JULIE I. BROWN

      19

               DATE:                    Wednesday, November 2, 2011

      20

               TIME:                    Commenced at 10:19 a.m.

      21                                Concluded at 11:47 a.m.

      22       REPORTED BY:             JANE FAUROT, RPR

                                        Official FPSC Reporter

      23                                (850) 413-6732

      24       APPEARANCES:             (As heretofore noted.)

      25

                          FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                       231

       1                              I N D E X

       2       OPENING STATEMENTS:                          PAGE NO.

       3            By Mr. Perko                              233

                    By Mr. Rehwinkel                          234

       4            By Mr. Moyle                              234

                    By Mr. White                              237

       5            By Mr. Perko                              238

       6

       7

       8

       9

      10                              WITNESSES

      11

               NAME:                                         PAGE NO.

      12

               WILL GARRETT

      13

                    Direct Examination by Mr. Perko            239

      14            Prefiled Testimony Inserted                242

                    Cross Examination by Mr. Moyle             250

      15            Cross Examination by Ms. Brown             263

                    Redirect Examination by Mr. Perko          265

      16

      17       PATRICIA WEST

      18            Direct Examination by Mr. Perko            266

                    Prefiled Testimony Inserted                269

      19            Cross Examination by Mr. Moyle             294

                    Cross Examination by Ms. Brown             297

      20

      21       THOMAS G. FOSTER

      22            Direct Examination by Mr. Perko            299

                    Prefiled Testimony Inserted                304

      23            Cross Examination by Mr. Moyle             324

                    Cross Examination by Ms. Brown             331

      24

      25

                          FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                       232

       1                              EXHIBITS

       2       NUMBER:                                    ID.    ADMTD.

       3       16, 17                                             266

       4       18 through 21                                      299

       5       40        Revisions to August 26, 2011,    301     337

                         Prefiled Testimony and Exhibits

       6

               41        (Late-filed)  ECRC Factors       336     337

       7                 Without Crystal River

                         Replacement Power Costs

       8

               26-30                                              337

       9

               42                                                 337

      10

      11

      12

      13

      14

      15

      16

      17

      18

      19

      20

      21

      22

      23

      24

      25

                          FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                       233

       1                         P R O C E E D I N G S

       2                 (Transcript follows in sequence from

       3       Volume 1.)

       4                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  And we need to take Docket

       5       110007 back off the table.

       6                 MS. BROWN:  All right.  Commissioner, as we

       7       left it, the Commission had made a bench decision on the

       8       proposed stipulations, and now we are entering into our

       9       hearing on PEF's Issue 10G.  It's my understanding, and

      10       I hope the parties will correct me if I'm wrong, that

      11       Mr. Garrett was sworn in yesterday.  I'm not certain Ms.

      12       West and Mr. Foster were.  They were?

      13                 MR. PERKO:  Yes, they were.  I will confirm

      14       that.

      15                 MS. BROWN:  All right.  Well, then I guess we

      16       are at opening statements, five minutes per party.

      17                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  The same thing again with

      18       Progress.  I'll give you seven minutes.  You can use as

      19       much as you want up front and the remaining at the end.

      20                 MR. PERKO:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  Good

      21       morning, Commissioners.  Gary Perko on behalf of

      22       Progress Energy.

      23                 Yesterday, Mr. Burnett explained in detail why

      24       it would be inappropriate to defer the costs, the

      25       replacement power costs associated with the Crystal
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       1       River 3 outage.  Those same reasons apply equally to the

       2       emission allowance costs, the environmental costs

       3       associated with that replacement power.

       4                 I won't take up the Commission's time to

       5       reiterate those points, but would simply adopt them.

       6       But I would reserve whatever time I have remaining to

       7       address any specific comments relating to the

       8       environmental costs that the intervenors raise.

       9                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Sounds good.

      10                 Intervenors, who wants to go first?

      11                 Mr. Rehwinkel.

      12                 MR. REHWINKEL:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

      13                 With the recognition that opening statements

      14       by attorneys is not evidence, and the fact that you

      15       heard my opening in fuel yesterday, my remarks would

      16       apply with respect to the amounts that are at issue in

      17       this docket equally.  So I would just commend my remarks

      18       from yesterday to you today for purposes of your

      19       consideration in this matter.  Thank you.

      20                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Thank you very much.

      21                 Mr. Moyle.

      22                 MR. MOYLE:  I could regive the opening that I

      23       gave yesterday, but I think I will just refer to it and

      24       make the points that things have changed materially from

      25       where we were last year, that you do have a hearing
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       1       coming up where prudence can be decided.  It's a better

       2       practice before making a decision about ratepayers'

       3       money in these difficult times to hear the evidence on

       4       the prudence, which will be heard in June, and then make

       5       a decision.

       6                 It's not like we're asking for a deferral

       7       indefinitely.  We are simply asking that y'all hear the

       8       evidence and then make a decision.  And I don't think

       9       given the situation with Progress financially that that

      10       is going to be overly problematic for them, so we would

      11       urge you to defer recovery of the environmental costs --

      12       not all of them, just the ones related to the Crystal

      13       River 3 outage.

      14                 And we are going to talk about those

      15       environmental costs with some of the witnesses and

      16       explore an issue you heard a little bit about in the 01

      17       docket, about these allowances for SOx and NOx, and how

      18       those be calculated, how they are booked, how did they

      19       get them in inventory, what cost did they pay for them.

      20       And this is an issue that to the extent that these

      21       allowances were provided at no basis, free under the

      22       requirements of an acid rain act, or some other reason

      23       and they got them for free, which they may or may not

      24       have, we will explore that.  But if they got them for

      25       free and then they put them on their shelf and now they
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       1       are saying, okay, well, because of Crystal River 3 not

       2       running, we have had to take some of these allowances

       3       off our shelf and use them and we are charging you for

       4       them, we would take objection to that.

       5                 We would think that whatever the basis in

       6       those allowances is should be the costs that they

       7       recover.  So if they testify and say, you know what,

       8       here is how much we paid for these disallowances.  We

       9       paid a thousand dollars and we had to use an allowance.

      10       Notwithstanding the arguments we have on prudence, that

      11       you ought to match the thousand dollar cost up to what

      12       they paid for them, but to the extent that there is

      13       accounting jargon and maneuvering -- I don't mean to

      14       disparage accountants, but I don't have an accounting

      15       background.  But it just doesn't comport or seem like a

      16       fair treatment to the extent that your cost basis in a

      17       certain product is zero, or ten dollars, but then you

      18       are ascribing a market value to it for the purposes of

      19       seeking recovery.  You know, we're going to explore

      20       that.

      21                 The other thing we are going to explore is

      22       that there is a new federal program coming on, and

      23       Progress is saying, well, this new federal program is

      24       going to make some of these allowances worthless, but we

      25       are going to treat that as a regulatory asset.  And that
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       1       works against the financial interest of the consumers,

       2       so we are going to have some testimony about that and

       3       get into some of the details of these NOx and SOx

       4       allowances, and the federal rules that are prompting

       5       that.

       6                 So I just wanted to kind of preview some of

       7       the questions that FIPUG will be asking to sort of tell

       8       you why we're asking the questions.  Because to the

       9       extent they say all we are trying to get is the money we

      10       paid for this, and we wrote checks for it, we may not

      11       have that big of an issue.  But to the extent that they

      12       didn't pay for them, or they got them pursuant to some

      13       decree from the government and there is no cost basis in

      14       it, and now they are looking to charge ratepayers for

      15       them, we will have an issue with that.

      16                 Thank you.

      17                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Thank you, sir.

      18                 Yes, ma'am.

      19                 MS. WHITE:  Good morning.  I will not

      20       reiterate the things that I said yesterday, but I will

      21       say this morning that FEA does support the concerns that

      22       FIPUG has.  And so we're interested to hear the

      23       questions to the answers (sic) that he will ask this

      24       morning.

      25                 And in the interest of time, I will not remind
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       1       you of why we are here, because I know that you know

       2       that very well.  Thank you so much.

       3                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Thank you.

       4                 MR. PERKO:  Very briefly, Mr. Chairman, if I

       5       may address some of the comments from FIPUG.  The

       6       evidence will establish that the costs of the emission

       7       allowances associated with replacement power as well as

       8       in general were expensed on an average cost basis

       9       consistent with generally accepted accounting principles

      10       as well as longstanding Commission practice.  So there

      11       should not be any issue as to that.

      12                 To the extent that allowances were allocated

      13       by EPA, that is accounted for in the average cost basis.

      14       So I don't think there's any basis to -- or would it be

      15       appropriate to pick and choose which allowances go with

      16       a particular ton of NOx or SO2 emitted.  That would

      17       simply be inappropriate and I think the evidence will

      18       demonstrate that.

      19                 As to the issue about the regulatory asset, I

      20       would point out that we have already stipulated that

      21       issue in 10E.  The Commission has expressly found that

      22       Progress' NOx allowance procurement strategy was

      23       reasonable and prudent and established that regulatory

      24       asset in approving that stipulation without objection

      25       from FIPUG or any other intervenors.  So I think it's
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       1       simply too late to raise that issue and would suggest

       2       that it would be inappropriate to do so.

       3                 Thank you.

       4                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Thank you, sir.

       5                 All right.  We haven't sworn in these

       6       witnesses yet, have we?

       7                 MS. BROWN:  We have Garrett, West, and Foster,

       8       and I think that's the appropriate --

       9                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Have these witnesses been

      10       sworn in?  Were they sworn in yesterday?

      11                 MR. PERKO:  Commissioner, it's my

      12       understanding that they were, and I can confirm that.

      13                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  Well, then let's call

      14       your first witness.

      15                 MR. PERKO:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  Progress

      16       Energy calls Mr. Will Garrett.

      17                             WILL GARRETT

      18       was called as a witness on behalf of Progress Energy

      19       Florida, and having been duly sworn, testified as follows:

      20                         DIRECT EXAMINATION

      21       BY MR. PERKO:

      22            Q.   Good morning, Mr. Garrett.  Would you please

      23       introduce yourself to the Commission and provide your

      24       business address for the record?

      25            A.   Good morning, Commissioners.
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       1                 My name is Will Garrett.  My business address

       2       is 299 First Avenue North in St. Petersburg, Florida.

       3       The zip code is 33701.

       4            Q.   Mr. Garrett, who do you work for and what is

       5       your position?

       6            A.   Yes.  I'm employed by Progress Energy Service

       7       Company as the Controller for Progress Energy Florida.

       8            Q.   Mr. Garrett, did you file prefiled testimony

       9       in this proceeding on April 1st, 2011?

      10            A.   Yes, I did.

      11            Q.   Do you have any changes to that testimony?

      12            A.   No, I do not.

      13            Q.   If I were to ask you the same questions in

      14       your prefiled testimony today, would your answers be the

      15       same?

      16            A.   Yes.

      17            Q.   Did you also file exhibits that have been

      18       marked on Staff's Comprehensive Exhibit List as Numbers

      19       16 and 17?

      20            A.   Yes.

      21            Q.   Do you have any changes to those exhibits?

      22            A.   No, I do not.

      23                 MR. PERKO:  At this time, Mr. Chairman, we

      24       would move Mr. Garrett's testimony into evidence as well

      25       as Exhibits 16 and 17.
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       1                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  We will move his prefiled

       2       testimony into the record as though read.  And Exhibits

       3       16 and 17, let's wait until after he gives his

       4       testimony.
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       1                 MR. PERKO:  Thank you, Your Honor.  At this

       2       time we would tender the witness for cross-examination.

       3                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Mr. Moyle.

       4                 MR. MOYLE:  Thank you.

       5                          CROSS EXAMINATION

       6       BY MR. MOYLE:

       7            Q.   Mr. Garrett, you were here yesterday when Ms.

       8       Olivier was asked a number of questions about the

       9       environmental cost modeling, and the amount of monies

      10       that Progress is seeking to recover related to

      11       environmental expense, were you not?

      12            A.   Yes, I was.

      13            Q.   Do you have that same knowledge that she has

      14       with respect to the models and the monies that Progress

      15       is seeking recovery for?

      16            A.   No, I'm not.  I don't have intimate knowledge

      17       about how the models on the forecasting side works.  I

      18       do, however, understand how the actual costs are

      19       incurred related to those allowances.

      20            Q.   Okay.  Let me refer you to your Exhibit WG-1.

      21       It's Page 4 of 23, and on Line 5 there is an

      22       SO2 emissions allowance.  Do you see that?

      23            A.   What I have here, unfortunately, is not

      24       numbered.

      25            Q.   In my version -- I'm sorry, it's under Line 1,

                          FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                       251

       1       description of O&M activities, and then there's a Number

       2       5 under that, SO2 emission allowances.

       3            A.   Yes.  This is for the period January 2010

       4       through December 2010?

       5            Q.   Yes, sir.

       6            A.   Yes.

       7            Q.   Okay.  And this is your exhibit, right?

       8            A.   Yes.

       9            Q.   And you have a number there for SO2 emissions

      10       allowances, correct?

      11            A.   It's both SO2 and NOx emission allowances,

      12       yes.

      13            Q.   Okay.  So NOx is not stated separately, it's

      14       part of the item on Line 5?

      15            A.   In Line 5 the description is SO2/NOx emission

      16       allowances.

      17            Q.   Okay.  Well, my copy just says SO2 emission

      18       allowances, but maybe we are looking at different

      19       things.  How do you come up with that number?

      20                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I think we're looking at two

      21       different charts.

      22                 MR. MOYLE:  Yes.

      23                 MR. PERKO:  Commissioner, we can provide a

      24       copy of the exact exhibit to the witness and maybe that

      25       will move things along.
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       1                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Let's do that.

       2                 THE WITNESS:  That would be helpful.

       3                 MR. MOYLE:  Okay.  Well, I'm not sure if I'm

       4       off or if you're off.

       5                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  We all have what you have in

       6       your hand.

       7                 MR. MOYLE:  Okay.

       8                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Does somebody, anybody have

       9       a copy for this witness?  He can have mine.

      10                 MR. PERKO:  I'll provide it to him, Mr.

      11       Chairman.

      12                 MR. MOYLE:  And I guess the question in my

      13       mind arises, well, what does the witness have?  Are

      14       there other differences that he's looking at?

      15                 THE WITNESS:  No.  I have my original filed

      16       testimony, but it wasn't marked.

      17                 Again, what page are you on, please?

      18       BY MR. MOYLE:

      19            Q.   What I'm looking at is an exhibit that was, I

      20       think, attached to your prefiled testimony that is WG-1,

      21       Page 4 of 23.  To the right it says Form 42-4A.

      22            A.   I'm there.

      23            Q.   Okay.  And then what was the difference

      24       between what you were looking at and testifying as

      25       compared to what you are looking at and testifying now?
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       1            A.   Yes.  Let me clarify.  If you look at Page 5

       2       of 23, there's a monthly breakout of that same dollar

       3       amount that you were referring to on Page 4, and in that

       4       description it is SO2/NOx emission allowances.  So it

       5       includes both.  On Page 4 of 23, the description says

       6       SO2 emission allowances, so it really includes both.  So

       7       the description on Page 4 should read SO2 and NOx

       8       allowances as it does on Page 5.

       9            Q.   So for accounting purposes then, you combine

      10       them, is that correct?

      11            A.   No.  They are separate inventories.  But for

      12       purposes of recording the expenditures here, they have

      13       been put together, or grouped together.

      14            Q.   Okay.  And do you know how much money you are

      15       seeking to recover for NOx and SOx allowances as a

      16       result of Crystal River 3 not running?

      17            A.   I think there was some discovery filed on that

      18       related to both 2010, '11, and '12 amounts.

      19            Q.   Should I wait for Mr. Foster, maybe, with

      20       that, or do you know the information?

      21            A.   I do know the information.  I think I have it

      22       here.  Give me a second.  The 2010 amounts are

      23       $2,453,542, and that would have been included in my

      24       actuals for 2010.  2011 was $1,191,999.  And then 2012

      25       is actually a negative amount of $957,130 for a total of
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       1       $2,688,411.

       2            Q.   And do you understand the logic behind

       3       Progress asking for this 2.6 million as it relates to

       4       NOx and SOx emissions?

       5            A.   The logic -- yes, I do understand the

       6       accounting behind it, if that's your question.

       7            Q.   No, I'm just trying to -- if you could

       8       describe why you did the before and after look in terms

       9       of how you came up with the NOx and SOx requests for

      10       funds?

      11            A.   The dollar amounts represent the actual

      12       expenses that either we have incurred or we are

      13       projecting to incur based on our historical inventory

      14       balances that we have in those SOx and NOx allowances.

      15            Q.   So if there was an audit being done and

      16       someone was looking to say, okay, I want to see the cost

      17       basis for these NOx and SOx allowances, what piece of

      18       paper would they find that would reveal the cost basis

      19       for the NOx and SOx allowances?

      20            A.   Well, they would find underlying, what I would

      21       call, perpetual inventory records that are required by

      22       the FERC that would maintain the historical cost basis

      23       of each allowance as it was purchased, and the vintage

      24       of that allowance, and a cumulative inventory value of

      25       those purchases.  And that perpetual record would also
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       1       show to what extent that inventory balance has been

       2       relieved or reduced for any use of allowances.

       3            Q.   Is it your testimony that every NOx and SOx

       4       allowance in the inventory was paid for and that you

       5       paid money to a third party for the allowance?

       6            A.   Some allowances are paid for and purchased,

       7       and others are allocated at a zero cost.  But all of

       8       those allowances then are available to be used based on

       9       the emissions at our various plants and as those

      10       allowances are used or consumed.

      11            Q.   So how many have a zero cost basis that were

      12       allocated and how many did you buy, or do you know that

      13       information?

      14            A.   There was some discovery filed related to

      15       that, but I'm not sure that I have that here.

      16            Q.   Can you say were more than half of them

      17       allocated by the federal government that doesn't have a

      18       cost basis as compared to ones that were purchased?

      19            A.   I wouldn't want to speculate unless I had that

      20       actual information in front of me.

      21            Q.   Would Mr. Foster be better able to answer

      22       that?

      23            A.   If I had a moment to find that, I could

      24       address that.  There was lot of discovery filed in this

      25       that I would have to go through to see if I could --
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       1                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  This sounds like a good

       2       time.  Let's just go ahead and take a five-minute recess

       3       and let the witness look for that information.

       4                 THE WITNESS:  Thank you.  I appreciate that.

       5                 MR. MOYLE:  Thank you.

       6                 (Brief recess.)

       7                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  All right.  We are about

       8       ready to get started, restated.

       9                 Mr. Moyle, you have the floor.

      10                 MR. MOYLE:  Thank you.

      11       BY MR. MOYLE:

      12            Q.   I think the witness was going to look for

      13       information as to describe how much of their inventory

      14       was allocated at zero cost basis as compared to how much

      15       they purchased.

      16            A.   Yes.  As part of the Sixth Set of

      17       Interrogatories, Numbers 13 through 14, which I believe

      18       have been submitted as exhibits here, there's an

      19       attachment to that exhibit and that response, Attachment

      20       13I that includes a table of the inventory allowances

      21       that I think answers the question you were getting at,

      22       which is what inventory balance do you have in terms of

      23       allowances, and what allowances have been allocated from

      24       the EPA and are included in that balance at zero cost.

      25            Q.   So can you describe what allowances have been
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       1       allocated by the EPA at zero cost?

       2            A.   Yes.  There are allowances that are both for

       3       NOx, seasonal NOx emission allowances and annual NOx

       4       emission allowances, as well as SO2 emission allowances.

       5       There are -- in terms of annual NOx emission allowances,

       6       in 2011 there was 17,914 tons allocated at zero cost,

       7       and for seasonal NOx allowances in 2011, 8,730 tons at

       8       zero cost.  And SO2 in 2011, the allocation was

       9       59,571 tons at zero cost.

      10            Q.   And with respect to NOx and SOx, were these

      11       credits sufficient to offset the additional

      12       environmental costs associated with not running Crystal

      13       River 3?

      14            A.   Well, there were sufficient -- I would say,

      15       no, that there were sufficient inventory balances

      16       available to meet those requirements.  It's just a part

      17       of the inventory that we have.

      18            Q.   I understand, but I'm just -- presumably there

      19       is a finite amount of NOx and SOx tons that you're

      20       looking to recover, because Crystal River 3 was not

      21       running, correct?

      22            A.   That's correct.

      23            Q.   Okay.  And the amount you're looking to

      24       recover in terms of that finite amount is less than the

      25       amounts that you just read with respect to NOx and SOx
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       1       emission credits that you have that were allocated to

       2       you for free, am I correct?

       3            A.   Yes, they are lower.  Yes, the actual NOx and

       4       SOx allowances that were used and considered to be

       5       related to the CR-3 outage are less than the amount that

       6       was allocated by the EPA.

       7            Q.   Okay.  But you are not necessarily, then,

       8       looking to assign a zero cost basis to the emissions

       9       credits for which you are now asking this Commission to

      10       authorize recovery for, correct?

      11            A.   That's correct.  We don't follow that

      12       accounting treatment.  The generally accepted accounting

      13       method for these allowances that's used by our company

      14       as well as recognized by the FERC as an acceptable

      15       method is an average cost method.

      16            Q.   And how did you get these free allowances?

      17       The federal government gave them to you, is that right?

      18            A.   Again, I don't know all the details around

      19       that, but I understand that they are allocated from the

      20       EPA.

      21            Q.   And, again, not being conversant on accounting

      22       terms, I have heard a term called FIFO.  Do you know

      23       what that is in accounting?

      24            A.   Yes.

      25            Q.   What is it?
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       1            A.   It's first in, first out.  It's a method of

       2       assigning costs to expenses related to inventory, the

       3       use of inventory.  It would be the equivalent -- in

       4       general business if you had sales and you were selling

       5       inventory, it would be one approach to assign cost to

       6       those sales as you sold inventory.  So, for example,

       7       FIFO would say that you would look at the first cost

       8       that you had in inventory, and you would sign that out

       9       to those sales.  So it would look to the oldest cost

      10       that you would have in inventory and assign that to

      11       sales.

      12                 That's one of a number of methods to use to

      13       value inventory.  Ours happens to be average cost, which

      14       is used not only for these inventories, but our fuel

      15       inventories, and, again, as recognized by the FERC as an

      16       acceptable method of valuing inventory.

      17            Q.   Does GAAP recognize FIFO as an acceptable way

      18       to also value inventories?

      19            A.   It does.

      20            Q.   Does FERC also recognize -- well, strike that.

      21                 So to the extent that you used FIFO, the FIFO

      22       treatment in accounting for these credits, if I

      23       understand our conversation, you would use the ones that

      24       the EPA provided to you for free, assuming that that was

      25       done as soon as the EPA put this program in place.  They
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       1       said, okay, we are going to come up with this new rule.

       2       We are going to give you allowances for certain things

       3       that you have, and then you are going to have to use

       4       these allowances to offset emissions.  Would I be

       5       correct in that assumption?

       6            A.   No, that's not correct.

       7            Q.   Why not?

       8            A.   Well, FIFO, again, would look to the oldest

       9       cost, and that cost could includes allowances that had

      10       zero value, and it could have allowances that have a

      11       purchased price.  So it wouldn't be just assigning those

      12       that have zero cost.  You would go back and look at the

      13       first cost that you have in inventory to assign to the

      14       expense that you were recognizing.

      15            Q.   Okay.  And for the purposes of my question,

      16       assume for the purposes of my question that you have

      17       this inventory.  You have 20 units in your inventory,

      18       and your first ten that you got initially were given to

      19       you by the federal government at no cost, okay?  So,

      20       Units 1 through 10, no cost from the federal government,

      21       correct?  Units 11 through 20, you went into the market

      22       and purchased them.

      23                 If the units needed to offset the Crystal

      24       River 3 not running, if you needed three units of those,

      25       and the EPA gave you those units before you purchased,
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       1       applying a FIFO principle, you would take the first

       2       three units, one, two, and three, and apply them against

       3       the requirement for certain units, correct?

       4            A.   Yes.  You would use those first units to

       5       assign costs for whatever the requirement was.

       6            Q.   Okay.  And in the FIFO approach, the cost of

       7       those first three units, assuming the EPA gave them to

       8       you and they came in before you went into the market,

       9       would be zero, correct?

      10            A.   That would be zero, yes.

      11            Q.   Let me just ask you a couple of questions on a

      12       different topic.  On Page 4 of your testimony, on Line 2

      13       you are seeking monies for certain property tax expense.

      14       Do you know what property tax expense you are seeking

      15       recovery for?

      16                 MR. PERKO:  Mr. Chairman, I'm going to object.

      17       This is outside the scope of this issue.  All other

      18       issues have been stipulated.

      19                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I'll allow the question.

      20                 THE WITNESS:  Can you tell me what page you

      21       are on again?

      22       BY MR. MOYLE:

      23            Q.   Sure.  Page 4, Line 2.

      24            A.   Yes.  Property tax would be associated with

      25       those capital assets that we are recovering operating
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       1       expenses related to that are qualified capital

       2       investments included and recovered through the ECRC.

       3            Q.   And is that limited solely to capital expense

       4       on environmental issues?

       5            A.   Yes.  It is only those capital investments

       6       that are recovered through the ECRC.

       7            Q.   Okay.  And down on Line 11, are you seeking

       8       recovery of certain combustion turbines through this

       9       clause where you say, quote, Clean Air Rule combustion

      10       turbines?

      11            A.   No, they are not CT, combustion turbine

      12       investments here.

      13            Q.   What is that?

      14            A.   Well, if we go to Page 9 through 12 of my

      15       exhibits -- there's a capital investment summary that

      16       I'm looking for.  If you go to page -- again,

      17       unfortunately, I'm looking at this exhibit.  I apologize

      18       that my details are different here.  Yes.  It's Page 4

      19       of 21.

      20            Q.   Yes.

      21            A.   And these are not CT investments, if you will.

      22       When I think of CTs I think of actual in-the-ground

      23       production assets, combustion turbines.  These details

      24       speak to above-ground tanks related to our facilities

      25       that have CTs at them.
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       1            Q.   What are the tanks used for?

       2            A.   I'm not aware exactly what they are used for

       3       operationally.  I do know that they are qualifying

       4       projects, though, that have been approved to be included

       5       in the ECRC.

       6                 MR. MOYLE:  Thank you for the opportunity to

       7       inquire.  I have no further questions.

       8                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Mr. Brew, Mr. Rehwinkel, any

       9       questions of this witness?

      10                 MR. REHWINKEL:  (Indicating no.)

      11                 MR. BREW:  (Indicating no.)

      12                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Staff?

      13                 MS. BROWN:  We have just a couple.

      14                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Sure.

      15                          CROSS EXAMINATION

      16       BY MS. BROWN:

      17            Q.   Good morning, Mr. Garrett.

      18            A.   Good morning.

      19            Q.   I'm Martha Brown.  How long has PEF practiced

      20       the NOx and SOx allowance accounting and expensing that

      21       FIPUG questioned you on?

      22            A.   It would have been since the adoption of the

      23       program.  I don't know the exact date of when we started

      24       securing SO2 or NOx allowances, but from the beginning

      25       of acquiring those we have been following that
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       1       methodology consistently, that is the average cost

       2       method.

       3            Q.   Would that have been, subject to check, since

       4       about 1995?

       5            A.   That sounds approximately right.  I would

       6       think that seems reasonable.

       7            Q.   And has PEF implemented any accounting changes

       8       related to emission allowances due to the CR-3 extended

       9       outage?

      10            A.   No, we have not.

      11            Q.   And just one more question.  You helped

      12       sponsor PEF's position on Issue 1 in this case, which

      13       are the final environmental cost-recovery true-up

      14       amounts for 2010.  The amount that you sponsored, as

      15       stated in the prehearing order, is $6,232,839

      16       overrecovery.  What would the final environmental

      17       cost-recovery true-up amount be, excluding any dollar

      18       amounts associated with PEF's Crystal River outage?

      19            A.   I can give an approximate amount, because you

      20       would have to actually run through an interest

      21       calculation to determine the exact overrecovery.

      22                 Directionally, since we are starting with an

      23       overrecovery, if you were to remove the 2010 related

      24       environmental costs associated with the CR-3 outage,

      25       which I mentioned earlier was $2,453,542, you would add
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       1       that amount to the $6,232,839, which my calculation is

       2       $8,686,381 overrecovery, plus whatever interest

       3       assumption you would make on that overrecovery.  So that

       4       would increase it slightly.

       5                 MS. BROWN:  Yes.  That's fine.  Thank you.

       6                 And with that we have no further questions.

       7                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Commissioners, any questions

       8       of this witness?

       9                 Redirect.

      10                 MR. PERKO:  Very briefly, Mr. Chairman.

      11                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Sure.

      12                         REDIRECT EXAMINATION

      13       BY MR. PERKO:

      14            Q.   Mr. Garrett, would it be appropriate to change

      15       accounting methodologies due to a particular event in

      16       time?

      17            A.   No.  Generally, for changing an accounting

      18       principle there has to be an underlying reason for it

      19       that it is a preferred method.  And I don't think it

      20       would be a preferred method to just pick and choose

      21       which way you wanted to -- what method you wanted to use

      22       to get a desired expense or desired outcome.  I think

      23       the more appropriate thing to do is to apply a

      24       methodology in a consistent manner.

      25                 MR. PERKO:  Nothing further.
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       1                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Now, what are those exhibits

       2       again you wanted to enter into the record?

       3                 MR. PERKO:  Exhibits 16 and 17.

       4                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Exhibits 16 and 17.  We will

       5       enter those into the record.

       6                 (Exhibit Numbers 16 and 17 admitted into the

       7       record.)

       8                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  If there is nothing else of

       9       this witness, Mr. Garrett, thank you for your testimony

      10       today.

      11                 Mr. Perko, if I can get you to call your next

      12       witness.

      13                 MR. PERKO:  Progress Energy calls Patricia

      14       West.

      15                            PATRICIA WEST

      16       was called as a witness on behalf of Progress Energy

      17       Florida, and having been previously duly sworn, testified as

      18       follows:

      19                         DIRECT EXAMINATION

      20       BY MR. PERKO:

      21            Q.   Good morning.  Could you please introduce

      22       yourself to the Commission and state your business

      23       address for the record.

      24            A.   Yes.  My name is Patricia West, and my

      25       business address is 299 First Avenue North in St.

                          FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

                                                                       267

       1       Petersburg, Florida, zip code 33701.

       2            Q.   Ms. West, have you been sworn?

       3            A.   Yes, I have.

       4            Q.   What position do you hold -- or by whom are

       5       you employed and in what position?

       6            A.   I am employed by the Progress Energy Services

       7       Company through Progress Energy Florida, and I serve as

       8       the Manager of Environmental Services.

       9            Q.   Did you submit prefiled testimony in this

      10       proceeding on April 1st, August 1st, and August 26th,

      11       2011?

      12            A.   Yes, I did.

      13            Q.   Do you have any changes to that testimony?

      14            A.   No, I do not.

      15            Q.   If I were to ask you the same questions in

      16       your prefiled testimony today, would your answers be the

      17       same?

      18            A.   Yes.

      19            Q.   And did you submit exhibits that have been

      20       marked on Staff's Composite Exhibit List as Numbers 18

      21       through 21?

      22            A.   I did.

      23            Q.   Do you have any changes to those exhibits?

      24            A.   No.

      25                 MR. PERKO:  At this time, Mr. Chairman, I
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       1       would move Ms. West's testimony, prefiled testimony into

       2       evidence.

       3                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  We will move Ms. West's

       4       prefiled testimony into the record as if though read.
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       1                 MR. PERKO:  And we tender the witness for

       2       cross-examination.

       3                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Ms. West, thank you.

       4       Welcome.

       5                 Intervenors?

       6                 MR. MOYLE:  I have some questions.

       7                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Sure.

       8                          CROSS EXAMINATION

       9       BY MR. MOYLE:

      10            Q.   The Cross-State Air Pollution Rule, CSAPR, are

      11       you seeking any costs, do you know, in this proceeding

      12       related to that rule?

      13            A.   Not at this time, not through the allowances,

      14       no.

      15            Q.   And this rule, as I understand it, does away

      16       with the requirement that Florida have SOx and NOx

      17       allowances, is that right?

      18            A.   That is not correct.  We still are responsible

      19       through the acid rain program to account for the SOx,

      20       but you are correct that the annual NOx requirement is

      21       no longer valid.  We would just be facing an ozone

      22       season NOx allowance.

      23            Q.   And is this rule effective yet?

      24            A.   The rule has gone final.  The EPA recently

      25       issued revisions to the rule, and we are currently in a
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       1       public comment period.  So the rule, although it's

       2       final, the outcome is not yet final, pending outcome of

       3       the public comment period.

       4            Q.   And so on Page 11 of your testimony, Line 1 --

       5                 MR. PERKO:  If we could clarify which

       6       testimony.

       7                 THE WITNESS:  Yes.

       8       BY MR. MOYLE:

       9            Q.   8/1/11.

      10            A.   And could you restate the --

      11            Q.   I'm sorry.  I have it on the last page of your

      12       testimony, Page 11.  You state at the top, "As of

      13       January 1, 2012, the emission allowances under CAIR will

      14       have no value."

      15            A.   That's correct.

      16            Q.   Do you know what -- is Progress going to have

      17       additional emissions allowances in inventory after

      18       January 1?

      19            A.   With regard to CAIR, no, we will not.

      20            Q.   Are you going to treat those as a regulatory

      21       asset, do you know?

      22            A.   That is my understanding.

      23            Q.   So the distinction between having them in

      24       inventory and treating them as a regulatory asset, you

      25       will have additional allowances, they just won't be in
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       1       inventory because they won't be needed, is that right?

       2            A.   They will not be needed for CSAPR, and I would

       3       have to defer to other witnesses for their treatment.

       4            Q.   And you state down on Page 11 about certain

       5       improvements at Crystal River 4 and 5 that are expected

       6       to provide some benefits in addressing the clean air

       7       challenges?

       8            A.   Yes.

       9            Q.   How do you anticipate that happening?

      10            A.   The work that was done at Crystal River Units

      11       4 and 5 is to help us comply with the requirements of

      12       CAIR, looking at the NOx and SOx emissions.  CSAPR will

      13       continue to look at NOx emissions through the ozone

      14       season, so the controls that were placed on Units 4 and

      15       5 will continue to benefit compliance with CSAPR in that

      16       regard.

      17            Q.   So do you know to the extent that you spend

      18       money to put these controls on and they result in less

      19       air emissions, do you receive credit for the reduction

      20       in air emissions?

      21            A.   The emissions from Crystal River Units 4 and 5

      22       were considered by EPA in the allocations they made to

      23       the state for CSAPR.

      24            Q.   Okay.  And you wouldn't know the cost basis of

      25       those, would you?
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       1            A.   I would not.

       2            Q.   You were responsible for, I guess, Plan D, is

       3       that right?

       4            A.   I support the updates of Plan D, yes.

       5            Q.   Okay.  And what is Plan D?

       6            A.   Plan D was developed in, I think, it was

       7       2005/2006 as a strategy to comply with the CAIR

       8       requirements that were in place at that time.

       9            Q.   And is that still your operative plan?

      10            A.   It is.

      11            Q.   Did you author this plan?

      12            A.   No, I did not.

      13            Q.   Who did?

      14            A.   Witness Daniel Rhoder (phonetic) back in 2005

      15       and '06.

      16                 MR. MOYLE:  That's all I have.  Thank you.

      17                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Staff.

      18                 MS. BROWN:  We just have one question for

      19       Ms. West.

      20                          CROSS EXAMINATION

      21       BY MS. BROWN:

      22            Q.   Good morning.

      23            A.   Good morning.

      24            Q.   We asked Mr. Garrett what the final

      25       environmental cost-recovery true-up amounts would be for
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       1       December for 2010, including any dollar amounts

       2       associated with PEF's Crystal River outage.  What we'd

       3       like to ask you is what are the final environmental cost

       4       true-up amounts excluding the environmental cost portion

       5       related to the purchase of replacement power due to

       6       CR-3, not the total?

       7            A.   I don't think I have access to that.  I don't

       8       have that information available to me right now.

       9            Q.   Okay.  You did sponsor this issue in the case.

      10       Could you provide a late-filed exhibit for us with that?

      11            A.   Can you help me with that reference?

      12            Q.   Well, what we're asking -- actually, if you

      13       want, the issue in the case as framed by FIPUG relating

      14       to the purchases of replacement power is Issue 10G, and

      15       it reads should PEF be permitted to recover any

      16       environmental costs related to its purchases of

      17       replacement power due to the Crystal River 3 outage.  So

      18       we're trying to get at the specific amount related to

      19       replacement power to take out of that final true-up.

      20       But perhaps Mr. Foster could answer it?

      21            A.   I would believe so, yes.

      22            Q.   Okay.  We'll ask it then.

      23                 MS. BROWN:  And we have no other questions.

      24                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Commissioners.

      25                 Redirect.
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       1                 MR. PERKO:  No redirect, Mr. Chairman.

       2                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  All right.  Which exhibits

       3       do we need to put in?

       4                 MR. PERKO:  Eighteen through 21.

       5                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  We will put 18, 19, 20, and

       6       21 into the record.

       7                 (Exhibit Numbers 18 through 21 admitted into

       8       the record.)

       9                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I would ask this witness to

      10       stay around just in case we can't get the answers we are

      11       looking for from Mr. Foster.  That all being said, you

      12       can call your next witness.

      13                 MR. PERKO:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

      14                 Progress Energy calls Thomas G. Foster.

      15                           THOMAS G. FOSTER

      16       was called as a witness on behalf of Progress Energy

      17       Florida, and having been duly sworn, testified as follows:

      18                         DIRECT EXAMINATION

      19       BY MR. PERKO:

      20            Q.   Could you please introduce yourself to the

      21       Commission and state your business address for the

      22       record?

      23            A.   Yes.  Good morning, Commissioners.

      24                 My name is Thomas Foster.  My business address

      25       is 299 First Avenue North, St. Petersburg, Florida,
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       1       33701.

       2            Q.   Mr. Foster, have you been sworn?

       3            A.   Yes, I have.

       4            Q.   Mr. Foster, by whom are you employed and in

       5       what position?

       6            A.   I'm employed by Progress Energy as the

       7       Regulatory Planning Supervisor.  These responsibilities

       8       include regulatory financial reports and analysis of

       9       state, federal, and local regulations and their impact

      10       on PEF.  In this capacity I am also responsible for

      11       PEF's estimated/actual and projection filings in the

      12       environmental cost-recovery docket.

      13            Q.   Mr. Foster, did you submit prefiled testimony

      14       in this proceeding on August 1st and August 26th, 2011?

      15            A.   Yes.

      16            Q.   Did you also submit exhibits that have been

      17       marked as Exhibit Numbers 26 through 30 on Staff's

      18       Comprehensive Exhibit List?

      19            A.   Yes.

      20                 MR. PERKO:  Mr. Chairman, earlier this morning

      21       I passed around to the Commissioners and the parties an

      22       exhibit, or a filing that I would like to mark as

      23       Exhibit Number 40 at your pleasure.

      24                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  The filing that you passed

      25       around, is it --
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       1                 MR. PERKO:  It's a notice of filing revised

       2       testimony and exhibit.

       3                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Dated October 14th?

       4                 MR. PERKO:  Yes, sir.

       5                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  We will mark that as

       6       Exhibit --

       7                 MR. PERKO:  Forty, I believe.

       8                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  And do you have a short

       9       title for that?

      10                 MR. PERKO:  Revisions to August 26th, 2011,

      11       prefiled testimony and exhibit.

      12                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  We will do that.

      13                 (Exhibit Number 40 marked for identification.)

      14       BY MR. PERKO:

      15            Q.   Mr. Foster, do you have a copy of what has

      16       been marked as Exhibit Number 40?

      17            A.   Yes.

      18            Q.   And could you identify what that document is?

      19            A.   These are revisions to my August 26th, 2011,

      20       testimony, and my Exhibit TGF Number 3.  Specifically,

      21       Attachment A to this document provides revised schedules

      22       to be included in Exhibit TGF-3, and Attachment B

      23       provides some changes to my August 25, 2011, prefiled

      24       testimony.

      25            Q.   You said August 25.  Would that be August 26?
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       1            A.   I'm sorry, yes, it would be.

       2            Q.   And, Mr. Foster, what was it that prompted the

       3       revisions to your testimony and exhibit?

       4            A.   These revisions are to reflect an agreement

       5       with staff to amortize the remaining NOx inventory

       6       balances over three years as opposed to one as we

       7       originally presented it.  There were also some minor

       8       math errors in it that we corrected.

       9            Q.   Do you have any additional revisions to your

      10       prefiled testimony?

      11            A.   No.

      12            Q.   Do you have any additional revisions to your

      13       exhibits?

      14            A.   Yes, I do one small one on Page 42, 5P, Page

      15       24 of 40 to what was my Exhibit TGF-3.

      16                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  What was that page, again?

      17                 THE WITNESS:  24 of 40.

      18                 MR. MOYLE:  August 1 or August 26th?

      19                 THE WITNESS:  August 26th as revised

      20       October -- let me make sure I get the date -- 14th.

      21       BY MR. PERKO:

      22            Q.   And that's part of Attachment A to Exhibit

      23       Number 40, is that correct?

      24            A.   Yes.  And the third and fourth sentences of

      25       the paragraph that is labeled project accomplishments,
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       1       it refers to emission allowances issued under the acid

       2       rain program.  It should say the Clean Air Interstate

       3       Rule program, or CAIR.

       4            Q.   Do you have any additional changes to your

       5       exhibits?

       6            A.   No.

       7            Q.   If I were to ask you the same questions in

       8       your prefiled testimony as revised by Exhibit Number 40

       9       today, would your answers be the same?

      10            A.   Yes.

      11                 MR. PERKO:  At this time, Your Honor, Mr.

      12       Chairman, we would request that Mr. Foster's testimony

      13       be entered into the record as if read.

      14                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  We will enter Mr. Foster's

      15       prefiled testimony into the record as though read.
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       1                 MR. PERKO:  And we tender the witness for

       2       cross-examination.

       3                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Mr. Foster, welcome.

       4                 THE WITNESS:  Thank you, sir.

       5                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Intervenors, any questions

       6       for this witness?

       7                 MR. MOYLE:  I have some.

       8                          CROSS EXAMINATION

       9       BY MR. MOYLE:

      10            Q.   Mr. Foster, you sponsored an interrogatory

      11       response, I think FIPUG asked the question, Third Set of

      12       Interrogatories, Number 6.  I believe staff just passed

      13       that out.

      14            A.   Yes, sir, I have it.

      15                 MR. MOYLE:  I have extra copies.  Does the

      16       Commission have that document?

      17                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Yes.  Do we need an exhibit

      18       number for this?

      19                 MR. MOYLE:  Yes.

      20                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Let's give it Exhibit Number

      21       41.

      22                 MR. MOYLE:  I was going to put it in, but

      23       staff can put it in.  It doesn't really matter.

      24                 MS. BROWN:  Be my guest.

      25                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  What is our description of
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       1       this?

       2                 MR. MOYLE:  PEF Revised Response to FIPUG

       3       Interrogatory Number 6 (Third Set).

       4                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.

       5                 (Exhibit Number 41 marked for identification.)

       6       BY MR. MOYLE:

       7            Q.   And, Mr. Foster, you signed the affidavit that

       8       is attached to this document, is that right?

       9            A.   I believe that's right, yes.

      10            Q.   And you answered -- you were asked the

      11       question about environmental costs related to the

      12       Crystal River 3 outage.  It's correct that you made no

      13       allowance purchases associated with the Crystal River 3

      14       outage, is that right?

      15            A.   It is correct that we made no purchases due to

      16       the Crystal River 3 outage of allowances.

      17            Q.   And it's also correct that you had available

      18       allowances at a zero cost basis that could have been

      19       used to make up the difference with respect to Crystal

      20       River 3 operating, or Crystal River 3 not operating,

      21       isn't that correct?

      22            A.   No, I wouldn't agree with the way you phrased

      23       that.

      24            Q.   All right.  We went through this with earlier

      25       witnesses, but you had allowances available at zero cost
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       1       basis, correct, for NOx and SOx?

       2            A.   We had allowances issued to us by the EPA, and

       3       they are issued at zero cost to us.  When you start

       4       talking about cost basis, I start thinking about how are

       5       these expensed under GAAP.  And I think that Mr. Garrett

       6       was more eloquent than I could ever be.  We used an

       7       average cost methodology for quite awhile.

       8            Q.   Right.  So I guess if you used the FIFO

       9       approach, they have a zero cost basis, and they would

      10       be -- you had sufficient inventory at zero to allocate

      11       to offset for the difference, correct, under a FIFO

      12       approach?

      13            A.   Well, I would have to assume that the first

      14       allowances we got were given to us at zero cost basis,

      15       which I'm not sure I can do as I sit here today.  But if

      16       you make that assumption, and there was an accounting

      17       rule where you are free to change your accounting

      18       methodologies whenever you want because you like the

      19       answer better, then I could agree that in that world,

      20       yes.

      21            Q.   You're a CPA, aren't you?

      22            A.   Yes, sir.

      23            Q.   Do you know, as a matter of practice, do CPAs

      24       give advice to clients about accounting treatment that

      25       may be beneficial to their clients?
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       1            A.   I'm sure they do.

       2            Q.   And isn't it true that Progress Energy has

       3       used accounting -- that they don't have a static set of

       4       accounting treatments, that they oftentimes will suggest

       5       a change in accounting treatment for certain things,

       6       isn't that true?

       7            A.   There are times when -- not Progress, but

       8       every company would do that.  And I would have to say

       9       that with regards to what is allowable as far as making

      10       a change under inventory accounting, probably Mr.

      11       Garrett was a better witness for that as our controller.

      12       But my education, you know, and all of my experience

      13       just saying today I'd like to change it because I would

      14       get a better answer for a specific incremental set of

      15       allowances would not be sufficient under GAAP to change

      16       your accounting method.

      17            Q.   Isn't it true that your company has asked this

      18       Commission to change its accounting treatment in the

      19       past of certain regulatory assets?

      20            A.   The Commission has, yes.

      21            Q.   And with respect to -- do you have information

      22       with respect to the allowances and which was the first

      23       in the allowances provided by the government at no

      24       charge or allowances that you may have purchased?

      25            A.   As I sit here today, I don't have all that
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       1       information, the reconciliation of every allowance we

       2       have ever had and whether it was either issued or

       3       purchased to us.  I mean, I'm sure that's something

       4       that's available if it were deemed necessary.

       5            Q.   So with respect to the government program that

       6       put in place, wouldn't you assume that a government

       7       program that would be put in place if it was going to

       8       provide allowances it would provide allowances at the

       9       start of the program?

      10            A.   I think they issue them -- I don't necessarily

      11       know that I would agree with that, and I just don't know

      12       exactly how they do it, but I know they issue every year

      13       allowances.

      14            Q.   So at the end of the day, I guess you are now

      15       seeking to have all of these allowances treated as a

      16       regulatory asset, is that right?

      17            A.   I believe there was an issue that looked at

      18       the allowances that the Cross-State Air Pollution Rule

      19       basically made not usable anymore that were useful under

      20       the clean air program, or Clean Air Interstate Rule.

      21       And my understanding is that it has been approved, that

      22       it's going to be a regulatory asset and amortized over a

      23       three-year period.

      24            Q.   So at the end of the day you ended up with

      25       more allowances than it turns out you needed, is that
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       1       right?

       2            A.   That's accurate, yes.  We had an allowance

       3       inventory that when they changed the program, you know,

       4       kind of mid-stream we hadn't used them all yet.  That's

       5       an accurate statement.

       6            Q.   And do you know how you're accounting for that

       7       with respect to the FIFO, the market rate, how you're

       8       accounting for the value of those assets with respect to

       9       how much is being recovered as a regulatory asset?

      10            A.   In accordance with the stipulation, we're

      11       recovering it over a three-year period straight line.

      12            Q.   Would it be an inaccurate statement, based on

      13       your being a CPA in the state of Florida, to say that

      14       the ratepayers and the consumers in Florida are being

      15       charged monies for allowances that Progress Energy did

      16       not pay any money for as it relates to allowances

      17       provided by the EPA, if you used the FIFO accounting

      18       method?

      19            A.   No.

      20            Q.   Why not?

      21            A.   We're not asking ratepayers to pay any money

      22       over and above what the purchase price was for

      23       allowances.

      24            Q.   Again, based on your average market approach,

      25       correct?
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       1            A.   Based on the approved methodology for

       2       expensing allowances.

       3            Q.   Okay.  And I asked you that question asking

       4       you to assume that FIFO was being used.  So if you

       5       assume FIFO Was being used, can you answer the question

       6       that I asked you?

       7            A.   Maybe restate it.  I'm not sure I get your

       8       question.

       9            Q.   Assume FIFO is being used.  Isn't it true that

      10       Progress Energy with respect to NOx and SOx allowances

      11       that they are seeking to recover for not having Crystal

      12       River 3 operational is seeking to recover monies from

      13       ratepayers for NOx and SOx allowances that they paid

      14       nothing for?

      15            A.   No, I can't agree with that.

      16            Q.   Why not?

      17            A.   I guess fundamentally it's flawed.  There is

      18       no FIFO methodology being used.  There is no FIFO

      19       methodology that has been approved year after year after

      20       year.  So fundamentally it's a flawed question.  I mean,

      21       I guess if I'm being asked to depart from reality and

      22       imagine a situation in which we were expensing

      23       allowances issued by the EPA at zero cost and assigning

      24       a cost to them -- I mean, if you're saying that by using

      25       the average cost methodology some allowances by the very
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       1       nature of it being averaged are going to be expensed at

       2       higher than what they went into the inventory at and

       3       some lower, that is exactly what average cost does.  And

       4       I guess without -- I mean, I guess it could go both ways

       5       in that instance.  So I can't, without going back and

       6       looking at a very specific scenario, sit here today and

       7       tell you that under a FIFO scenario customers -- and I

       8       struggle to even opine on it, since it's not a factual

       9       scenario.

      10            Q.   In accounting school -- I'm sorry.  Did they

      11       describe FIFO as departing from reality?

      12            A.   Say again.

      13            Q.   In accounting school, did they describe FIFO

      14       as departing from reality?

      15            A.   No, sir.

      16            Q.   So I will try it one more time.  If you assume

      17       FIFO is being used, is it an accurate to say that

      18       Progress Energy is looking to charge ratepayers for NOx

      19       and SOx allowances because Crystal River 3 was not

      20       running in which they had a zero cost basis?

      21            A.   No, I can't agree with that statement.

      22                 MR. MOYLE:  That's all I have.

      23                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Staff.

      24                          CROSS EXAMINATION

      25
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       1       BY MS. BROWN:

       2            Q.   Good morning, Mr. Foster.

       3            A.   Good morning.

       4            Q.   We just have a few questions for you.

       5                 What are the final environmental cost true-up

       6       amounts excluding the environmental cost portion related

       7       to the purchased replacement power due to the Crystal

       8       River 3 outage for 2010?

       9            A.   Are you looking at Issue 1?

      10            Q.   Yes.

      11            A.   Okay.  And I think with regard to 2010, maybe

      12       if I can clarify, if you assume that -- in our response

      13       to FIPUG's Sixth Interrogatory, we quantified a number,

      14       some numbers for '10, '11, and '12.  And these are what

      15       I think are being referred to as the cost of allowances

      16       associated with the CR-3 outage.  So if you accept -- I

      17       want to make it clear that none of these -- there were

      18       no additional purchases.  These were costs that

      19       basically got expensed because inventory was used sooner

      20       than it otherwise would have because CR-3 was down.  But

      21       the outage itself did not cause any additional

      22       purchases.  With that being said, and, I'm sorry --

      23            Q.   No, that's fine.

      24            A.   -- the amount would be the 6,232,839 that is

      25       identified in Issue 1 under our position less the
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       1       2,453,542.

       2            Q.   All right.  I have the same questions to ask

       3       you for Issue 2, 3, 4, and 7, as well.  We are looking

       4       for the final -- the estimated environmental

       5       cost-recovery true-up amounts for January 2011 through

       6       December 2011, excluding the environmental cost purchase

       7       portion related to the purchased replacement power costs

       8       due to Crystal River?

       9            A.   Sure.  And I guess I should have, on the last

      10       one, thrown in the same caveat Mr. Garrett put in that

      11       there would be some interest at the commercial paper

      12       rate, less than one percent is my understanding today

      13       that you would have to factor in.  But directionally and

      14       generally speaking, it would be the 2,552,337 plus the

      15       1,191,999.

      16            Q.   All right.  Can you do the math for me on

      17       that, add that up?  And I think Mr. Garrett did the math

      18       for Issue 1, which was 8,686,381 plus any interest.

      19                 MR. MOYLE:  Do you need a calculator?

      20                 THE WITNESS:  If you have one, that would be

      21       fantastic.  I'm having a flashback to the August

      22       hearings when Mr. Brew asked me a question. (Pause.)

      23                 So for 2011 I'm getting 3,744,336 plus some

      24       interest.

      25                 MS. BROWN:  All right.  Thank you.
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       1       BY MS. BROWN:

       2            Q.   Now, if we could move on.  I have the same

       3       question for Issue 3.  The projected environmental

       4       cost-recovery amounts for the period January 2012

       5       through December 2012.  And let me also mention that

       6       that would be a 3,744,000 plus change overrecovery,

       7       correct?

       8            A.   3,744,336.

       9            Q.   Overrecovery?

      10            A.   Yes, ma'am.

      11            Q.   Now on to the projected amounts.

      12            A.   Okay.  If you would give me just one second.

      13       My fingers are too big for these little buttons.

      14                 So if you look at our position in Issue 3, it

      15       is 207,302,671 currently.  It would change to

      16       208,259,801.

      17            Q.   And that's factoring in the 2012 --

      18            A.   957,130?

      19            Q.   Yes, 957,130?

      20            A.   Yes, ma'am.

      21            Q.   Okay.  And Issue 4 is what are the

      22       environmental cost-recovery amounts including true-up

      23       amounts for the period January 2012 through

      24       December 2012.  Can you do that same calculation for me?

      25            A.   Yes.  It just may take a second.
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       1            Q.   Sure, that's fine.

       2            A.   I didn't jot the 2010 number down.  I'm almost

       3       there.  I think I made a mistake here.  I don't want to

       4       give you -- I'm getting 195,972,017.  So 195 million.

       5                 You're asking about Issue 4, which is

       6       currently 198,660,428, and it would be the $195,972,017.

       7       And that's subject to some minor interest.

       8            Q.   All right.  Thank you.

       9            A.   Sorry it took so long.

      10            Q.   No, that's fine.  Thank you for doing it.

      11                 Issue 7 is the appropriate environmental

      12       cost-recovery factors for the period January 2012

      13       through December 2012.  I don't know that you can make

      14       this calculation while we all watch you here today.  I'd

      15       like to have that calculation made in the same way.

      16       Perhaps we could have a late-filed exhibit to reflect

      17       that.

      18            A.   I imagine we can.

      19                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  I guess I have a question.

      20       Why is it that we need this witness to file that

      21       calculation?  Is that something that staff cannot do?

      22                 MS. BROWN:  We can do it.  We often like to

      23       have the company provide the numbers for us, because

      24       then it's their evidence.  But we can do it, if you

      25       don't want that.
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       1                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Well, I mean, I don't know

       2       if it needs to be an exhibit.  You can check the number

       3       that they give you versus the number that you calculate.

       4                 MS. BROWN:  We need the factor with the

       5       calculations removing the purchase power costs.

       6                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  All right.

       7                 MR. MOYLE:  If what I understand is being

       8       asked is simply a calculation backing out the Crystal

       9       River 3 related issues, and that's it, we don't have any

      10       objection to that.

      11                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  We will put this down

      12       as a late-filed exhibit.

      13                 THE WITNESS:  Can I just ask for a

      14       clarification, sir?

      15                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Sure.

      16                 THE WITNESS:  From an administrative ease

      17       standpoint, and recognizing that we said that with some

      18       interest, it would be much easier to just drop the total

      19       amount out of the 2011 projection.  But I guess I just

      20       want to make sure whether you are contemplating that we

      21       need to go back and redo all the 2010 calculations, 2011

      22       calculations, and 2012, or can we do it in an

      23       administratively efficient way and, say, pull out

      24       basically this amount that was in the FIPUG response to

      25       2012 and --
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       1                 MS. BROWN:  If you are comfortable that that

       2       will give us an accurate calculation of the factor

       3       without the Crystal River outage amounts, that would be

       4       fine with us.

       5                 THE WITNESS:  Yes, I think that would be most

       6       efficient way to do it.

       7                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.

       8                 THE WITNESS:  Thank you.

       9                 MS. BROWN:  Yes.  Commissioner, that would be

      10       Late-filed Exhibit 42, and a short title would be ECRC

      11       factors without Crystal River costs, or Crystal River

      12       purchased power costs.

      13                 THE WITNESS:  I wouldn't say purchased power.

      14                 MS. BROWN:  Okay.

      15                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Without Crystal River costs.

      16                 THE WITNESS:  Replacement power would be a

      17       more --

      18                 MS. BROWN:  Yes, that's fine.

      19                 MR. PERKO:  Mr. Chairman, just to preserve, we

      20       would like to offer an objection to that exhibit to the

      21       extent that we don't believe it's appropriate to adjust

      22       the factors.  I just want to be on the record, but we

      23       will provide that information.

      24                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Sure.

      25                 (Late-filed Exhibit Number 42 marked for
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       1       identification.)

       2                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Staff.

       3                 MS. BROWN:  We have no further questions.

       4                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Commissioners, any questions

       5       of this witness?

       6                 Seeing none.  Redirect.

       7                 MR. PERKO:  No redirect, sir.

       8                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  We have got some

       9       exhibits to put on the record.

      10                 MR. PERKO:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.  Progress

      11       Energy would ask that Exhibit Numbers 26 through 30 and

      12       Exhibit Number 40 be admitted into the record.

      13                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  We have got 26, 27, 28, 29,

      14       30, and 40 will be entered into the record.

      15                 (Exhibit Numbers 26 through 30, and Exhibit

      16       Number 40 admitted into the record.)

      17                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Mr. Moyle.

      18                 MR. MOYLE:  We would move 41 in.

      19                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  And staff wants to move 42

      20       in?

      21                 MS. BROWN:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.

      22                 (Exhibit Numbers 41 and 42 admitted into the

      23       record.)

      24                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  And we have already moved 38

      25       and 39 in earlier, is that correct?
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       1                 MS. BROWN:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.

       2                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  All right.  I guess the

       3       question I have is did you get the answers from

       4       Mr. Foster that you were looking for from Ms. West?

       5                 MS. BROWN:  Yes.

       6                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Okay.  Well, then we can

       7       excuse both Mr. Foster and Ms. West.

       8                 Thank you, sir.

       9                 THE WITNESS:  Thank you.

      10                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  All right.  We are done with

      11       the witnesses.

      12                 Staff, is there anything else?

      13                 MS. BROWN:  It's my understanding that the

      14       parties wish to brief this Issue 10G, and we have

      15       established the same briefing schedule as we have in 01.

      16                 The briefs will be due November 8th for staff

      17       to file its recommendation on November 15th at 9:00

      18       o'clock in the morning, and the Commission would address

      19       the recommendation at its November 22nd agenda

      20       conference.

      21                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Once again, we need to make

      22       sure that we are clear that when we say November 8th, we

      23       mean the end of the day on November 8th.

      24                 MS. BROWN:  Yes.

      25                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  My opinion is 5:00 p.m.
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       1       Okay.

       2                 Any other questions or concerns from any of

       3       the parties?

       4                 MS. BROWN:  One more.  The final order will be

       5       issued by December 1st.

       6                 CHAIRMAN GRAHAM:  Yes, ma'am.  That all being

       7       said, this docket is adjourned.

       8                 I want to thank everybody for all the time

       9       that went into this and for your patience.  Sometimes

      10       it's not easy putting an engineer back here making him

      11       act like he's a lawyer or a judge, but I think we got

      12       through it.  And I hope y'all travel safely.

      13                 Thank you very much for your time.

      14                 (The hearing concluded at 11:47 a.m.)
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